ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS COW TTEE
May 7, 2002
3:50 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Gene Therriault, Chair
Senat or Randy Phillips, Vice Chair
Senat or Ben Stevens

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Rick Halford
Senat or Bettye Davis

COWM TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS:

Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion
John Dapcevi ch
Shei |l a Gal | agher

Al aska National Guard
Col onel Janmes K. Robi nson
Col onel Tinmothy W Scott
Col onel Cene L. Ransay

Space and M ssil e Defense
Col onel James L. Wl ch

Human Ri ghts Conm ssi on
Kat hy Kei sor W st hof f

HOUSE BI LL NO. 526
"An Act relating to the deadline for filing financial disclosure
statenents for public nenbers and public nenber nom nees of the
Sel ect Commttee on Legislative Ethics."

MOVED HB 526 OUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 517(STA)
"An Act relating to the disposition of obsolete or surplus state
property."”

MOVED CSHB 517( STA) OUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 312(CRA)

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- May 7, 2002



"An Act relating to enterprise zones."
MOVED CS SB 312 (CRA) OUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 165(RES)
"An Act relating to the Kenai River Special Managenent Area; and
providing for an effective date."

MOVED SCS CHHB 165( STA) OUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HB 526 — No previous action to record.

HB 517 — No previous action to record.

SB 312 — See CRA m nutes dated 3/27/02 and 5/3/02.
HB 165 — See State Affairs m nutes dated 5/2/02.

W TNESS REGQ STER

John Dapcevi ch

No address provided

Juneau, AK 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: APQOC confirnati on nom nee

Shei |l a Gal | agher
No address provided
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  APCC confirmati on nom nee

Col onel Janes K. Robi nson
No address provided
PCSI Tl ON STATEMENT: Al aska National Guard confirnati on nonm nee

Col onel Tinmothy W Scott
No address provided
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Al aska National Guard confirmati on nom nee

Col onel CGene L. Ransay
No address provided
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Al aska Nati onal Guard confirmation nom nee

Col onel Janes L. Wl ch
No address provi ded
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Space & M ssil e Defense confirmati on nom nee

Maj or General Phil Qates
Adj ut ant General / Comm ssi oner
Department of Mlitary &
Vet erans Affairs
PO Box 5800
Ft Ri chardson, AK 99505-0800
PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on Alaska Air National Quard
confirmations

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- May 7, 2002



Tom Wi ght

Staff to Representative Brian Porter
Al aska State Capitol, Room 208
Juneau, AK 99801-1182

Joyce Anderson, Admi nistrator

Ethics Commttee

P. 0. Box 101468

Anchor age, AK 99510- 1468

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 526

Bill Law ence

Staff to Representative Carl Mrgan

Al aska State Capitol, Room 434

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 517

Chris Parce

Director of General Services

Departnent of Adm nistration

PO Box 110200

Juneau, AK 99811-0200

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 517

Zach Warw ck

Staff to Senator Gene Therriaul t

Al aska State Capitol, Room 121
Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced SB 312

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 02-02-29, SIDE A

CHAI RMAN GENE THERRIAULT called the Senate State Affairs
Commttee neeting to order at 3:50 p.m Present were Senators
Phillips, Stevens and Chairman Therriault.

He announced Governor’s Confirmations would be the first order of
busi ness. Information on the individuals up for consideration was
in nmenber’s packets. If there were no problens, nenbers would
sign a letter to forward the nanmes to the full Legislature for
consi derati on.

JOHN  DAPCEVI CH, Alaska Public Ofices Comm ssion (APQCC
appointee, said he has served every elected Governor on many
boards, comm ssions and commttees since statehood. He served six
terms as mayor in Sitka and on their borough assenbly and city

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- May 7, 2002



council. He was appointed to APOCC one year ago for an unexpired
term that expired this year and the Governor submtted his nane
for reappointnent.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked how many tinmes the conm ssion net since
he was asked to serve.

MR. DAPCEVICH replied they had four face-to-face neetings and two
t el econferenced neetings.

SENATOR STEVENS asked for the term of the appointnent.
MR. DAPCEVICH replied this was a five year term

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT announced the next appointee was Sheila
Gal | agher and she was not available on short notice. He asked
menbers whether they’'d had the opportunity to |ook over her
background information and if there was any desire to carry her
name forward to a future neeting when she could be available to
answer questions.

SENATOR STEVENS asked whether hers was a new appointnment or a
reappoi ntnent. He also asked what the appointnent term was and
the total nunber of APOC directors.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said Ms. @Gallagher’s was a reappoi ntnment for
a five year termand there are five appoi nted APCC nenbers.

SENATOR STEVENS asked how many positions were up for appointnent.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said M. Dapcevich and Ms. Gal |l agher were the
two APQOC appoi nt ments.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS nade a notion to forward a letter to the joint
Legi sl ature stating no objection to the APOC appoi ntnents of John
Dapcevi ch and Sheila Gl |l agher.

There being no objection, it was so ordered.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said the Al aska National Guard appointnents
woul d be considered next. He asked Col onel Janmes K. Robinson if
there was anything he would like to add to his biographical
i nformation.

COLONEL JAMES K. ROBINSON testified via tel econference that he
has been in the Alaska Air National CGuard for about 24 years and
has attained the rank of Colonel. He currently works with the
Adj utant GCeneral, Major Ceneral Phil Cates as the director of

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- May 7, 2002



oper ati ons.
SENATOR STEVENS asked for the term of the appointnent.

MAJOR GENERAL PHI L OATES, Adjutant General/Conm ssioner with the
Depar t ment of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs, said these
appointments are indefinite. Every general officer in the Al aska
National Guard mnust receive confirmation from both the state
Legi slature and the U. S. Congress.

SENATOR STEVENS asked whether the four individuals were being
nom nat ed as general officers.

MAJOR GENERAL OATES said he was changing the process a bit
because they require both state and national confirmation. He
wanted to establish the process whereby everyone would be
confirmed on the state level first and then go on for federal
confirmation. He chose this order because federal confirmations
take nore than a year and he didn’t want to wait that |ong then
find an appoi ntnent m ght not be acceptable on the state |evel.

SENATOR STEVENS asked how many general officers there were in the
Al aska National GCuard.

MAJOR GENERAL CQATES replied there are six counting hinself.

SENATOR STEVENS noted four of the six offices were up for
confirmation.

MAJOR GENERAL OATES said, assuming he is confirnmed, Colonel Gene

Ranmsay w Il have his change of command for the 176 Wng at
Ei el son Air Force Base in July. Colonel Tim Scott will be grooned
to replace Colonel Ranmsay and assumng he is confirned at the
state level, his name will be submtted at the federal |evel.
“Three of these will actually be going directly into positions
and the fourth will be the next in line.”

MAJOR GENERAL OATES said Colonel Robinson is a traditional
guardsman, which nmeans he participates in National Guard work on
a part time basis and at the sane tinme is a pilot for Al aska
Airlines.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT announced Colonel Tinmothy W Scott was next
on the confirmation |list and he was unable to attend.

MAJOR GENERAL OATES said he was currently deployed and is the

Commander of the 168'" Aero Refueling Wng at Eielson Air Force
Base. He was a War College graduate and he put four tankers in

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- May 7, 2002



the air on no notice and handled all the aero refueling support
in Al aska on Septenber 11, 2001.

There were no questions fromcomittee nenbers.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT announced Col onel Gene L. Ranmsay was the next
on the confirmation list. He asked if there was anything he would
|ike to add to his biographical information.

COLONEL GENE L. RAMBAY testified via teleconference that he was
ready to take over the 176'" Wng at Kulis Air National Guard Base
at the Anchorage International Airport. They are generally busy
rescui ng Al askans and have been particularly busy since Septenber
11, 2001. He received federal confirmation on Septenber 26, 2001.

There were no questions fromcomittee nenbers.

MAJOR GENERAL OATES added that Colonel Ransay is the Vice-
Commander of the Wng and is well prepared to assune command of
the Wng based on the quality of his past performances.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS made a notion and asked unani nous consent for
the Al aska Air National Guard nom nees, Col onel Robi nson, Col onel
Scott and Col onel Ransay to be forwarded with no objections.

There being no objection, it was so ordered.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT announced Space and M ssil e Defense Brigadier
General, Colonel Janes L. Wlch, Retired would be considered. He
asked if there was anything he would like to add to his
bi ographi cal information.

COLONEL JAMES L. VELCH testified via teleconference and pointed
out that this was a new position for the State of Al aska and a
uni que position throughout the country. It is a key role and
shows that Alaska is ready to assunme its role to ensure that the
Al aska National Guard is ready to assune its role.

MAJOR GENERAL OATES added Col onel Welch brings a strong industry
background in | arge project managenment fromhis work with British
Petroleum and the oil industry. That in conbination wth his
strong mlitary background nade hi man excellent choice.

There were no questions fromcomittee nenbers.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS made a nption to forward Col onel Welch's nane to
the joint Legislature for confirmation.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- May 7, 2002



There being no objection, it was so ordered.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT announced Kathy Keisor Wsthoff as the
confirmati on nom nee from the Human Ri ghts Conm ssion. Because
she was unable to attend the neeting, he asked if nenbers had any
desire to hold her name until she could attend. If there was no
obj ecti on he asked for a notion.

SENATOR PHILLIPS mnmade a notion to recommend Human Rights
Comm ssion  nom nee, Kat hy Keisor Wsthoff, to the full
Legi sl ature.

There being no objection, it was so ordered.

#HB 526

HB 526- DI SCLOSURE BY ETHI CS COVMM TTEE MEMBERS

TOM WRI GHT, staff to Representative Brian Porter, said the bill
was introduced on behalf of the Legislative Ethics Commttee. It
requires the public nomnee to the Ethics Conmttee to file his
or her financial disclosure on or before the second Monday of
January.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if it was an issue of disclosure in
general or the timng of the disclosure.

MR, WRIGHT replied it was the timng of the disclosure. There was
a nom nee who went through the process then found out how mnuch
financial information had to be disclosed and withdrew Wth
passage of this legislation, they would know beforehand what
woul d be required of themas far as financial disclosure. It also
gives Legislators an opportunity to look at the financial
i nformation disclosed by that person along with their resune when
they are | ooking at confirmation.

JOYCE ANDERSON, Ethics Conmttee Adm nistrator, said the Ethics
Commttee thought this was a good change to the ethics code
because of their experience with the nomnee that M. Wight
ment i oned.

There were no questions and no further testinony.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said he had not prepared a CS and no
amendnents were offered. There was one zero fiscal note. He asked
for the will of the commttee.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS made a npotion to nove HB 526 and attached fi scal

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- May 7, 2002



note fromcomttee with individual recomendati ons.

There being no objection, it was so ordered.
#

#HB 517

HB 517- SURPLUS/ OBSCOLETE STATE PROPERTY

Bl LL LAWRENCE, staff to Representative Carl Mrgan, introduced HB
517 as a bill to fix a problem dealing with surplus property.
Specifically, it was witten to address surplus fax nmachi nes and
require that all electronic identifiers be renoved before a fax
machine is sent to surplus. There are instances where the
el ectronic identifiers have not been renpved so they decided it
would be in the best interest of the state to place the
requirenent in statute. It wll prevent the appearance of
inpropriety and should prevent a party fromintentionally faxing
material identified as from the State of Al aska. Federal |aw
requires that all faxes be identified with a phone nunber and the
nane of the sender. Wwen the state surpluses a nachine al
headers should be renoved so the new owner receives a clean
machi ne.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked why the owner’s nmanuals aren’t with the
machi nes when they go to surplus.

CHRIS PARCE, Director of General Services, replied the state
doesn’t generally buy owner’s manuals to go with all the machines
because they are expensive. Mst nmachines the state buys are put
onto servers, which are networked to serve nultiple stations, and
they don't come with full rmnuals, just basic “cheat sheet”
i nstructions.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS asked if this couldn’'t be done internally.

M5. PARCE said they do this internally. They have a property
control handbook that instructs enployees to renove all prograns
and acconpanyi ng data, and delete all headers.

SENATOR PHILLIPS interjected, “Then why are we here.”

MS. PARCE replied she didn’t know who introduced the bill. Their
surplus handbook instructs enployees to renove the electronic
headers from nachi nes before they are sent to surplus but they
don’t always follow all the rules. She said it probably doesn’t
hurt for this to be a | aw

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- May 7, 2002



SENATOR PHILLIPS didn’t think individuals that don’'t follow the
rul es could be expected to follow the |aw.

CHAl RVAN THERRI AULT said it probably doesn’t hurt, but he
under st ood hi s questions.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS commented this constitutes m nutia nmanagenent.
CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT noted the one zero fiscal note. He had no
prepared CS and there were no anendnents offered. He asked for
the will of the commttee.

SENATOR STEVENS nade a notion to nmove HB 517 and attached fisca
note fromcommttee with individual recommendati ons.

There being no objection, it was so ordered.
#

#SB 312

SB 312- ENTERPRI SE ZONES

ZACH WARW CK, staff to the bill sponsor, Senator Gene Therriault,
expl ained that SB 312 authorizes the Governor to declare up to
four areas of the state as enterprise zones every year. Zones
woul d be designated due to econom c distress and each designation
could last up to 20 years. This is designed to encourage and
authorize local nunicipalities to offer incentives within the
zone. Such incentives could include a reduction of permt or user
fees, credit toward exenptions in property taxes, and flexibility
in regulations such as zoning, |leasing or sale of nunicipal
properties.

There are two state incentives that are included. First, 15
percent of the initial investnment put into the area would count
as credit toward state corporate incone taxes for that first
year. The credit nmay not be carried forward. Second, there would
be a $500.00 corporate incone tax credit for each new enpl oyee
hired every year. One of the major reasons behind the bill is to
hel p conmunities to produce proposals and qualify for federa
grants and federal tax credits that are offered by HUD (Health
and Urban Devel opnent) and the U. S. Departnment of Agriculture.

There were anmendnents nmade in the Community and Regional Affairs
Commttee to nake the | anguage cl ear.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT said there was | anguage that was problematic
in ternms of whether the federal governnent or the state

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- May 7, 2002



governnent acted first. He asked whether that |anguage was
clarified.

MR, WARWCK said that |anguage was deleted. The second issue
dealt with cities within a borough. Oiginal |anguage said a city
within a borough is not eligible to mke a proposal for an
enterprise zone, which would exenpt many of the cities in the
state. The third anendnent was to change the |anguage regarding
size of the areas that would be called enterprise zones.
Oiginally the areas were census tracts, which is about a 10, 000
person area. That was changed to one or nore continuous bl ock
groups in the U S. census or a conpact geographic area. Senator
Lincol n requested that change because original |anguage excl uded
rural Al aska.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked whether there were any other issues
brought up that were not addressed.

MR WARWCK replied all issues were addressed.

There was no further testinony.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT said he had no prepared CS and nenbers
of fered no anendnments. There were two fiscal notes. He asked for
the wll of the commttee.

SENATOR PHILLIPS nmade a notion to nove SB 312 and acconpanyi ng
fiscal notes from commttee wth individual reconmendations.
There being on objection, it was so ordered.

#

#HB 165

HB 165- KENAI Rl VER SPECI AL MANAGEMENT AREA

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked Representative Lancaster whether he had
gotten together with Senator Hal ford because he had concerns he
wanted to address, but he was unable to attend the neeting. He
noted Senator Halford is on the Resources Conmittee, which is the
next commttee of referral. There was a proposed CS that reduces
t he acreage.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked whether the CS triggered a change in
the fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE KEN LANCASTER, bill sponsor, replied there was no
fiscal note he was aware of. [Zero fiscal notes.]

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- May 7, 2002



SENATOR PHILLIPS asked whether all the legal descriptions were
correct to the best of his know edge.

REPRESENTATI VE LANCASTER replied all the descriptions were
checked and checked agai n.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT said they had the \'J proposed CS and needed
to adopt it as the working docunent.

SENATOR PHILLIPS made a notion to nove commttee substitute \J
5/1/02 version of SCS CSHB 165(STA) as the working docunent.
There being no objection, it was adopted as the worki ng docunent.

SENATOR PHILLIPS made a notion to nmove SCS CSHB 165(STA) \J
version dated 5/1/02 and attached fiscal notes from committee
wi th individual recomendati ons.

There being no objection, it was so ordered.
#

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the Senate
State Affairs Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 4:35 p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- May 7, 2002



